

MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the
LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from electronic originals
(may include minor formatting differences from printed original)

LAWS
OF THE
STATE OF MAINE

AS PASSED BY THE

ONE HUNDRED AND TWENTY-THIRD LEGISLATURE

SECOND REGULAR SESSION
January 2, 2008 to March 31, 2008

FIRST SPECIAL SESSION
April 1, 2008 to April 18, 2008

THE GENERAL EFFECTIVE DATE FOR
SECOND REGULAR SESSION
NON-EMERGENCY LAWS IS
JUNE 30, 2008

THE GENERAL EFFECTIVE DATE FOR
FIRST SPECIAL SESSION
NON-EMERGENCY LAWS IS
JULY 18, 2008

PUBLISHED BY THE REVISOR OF STATUTES
IN ACCORDANCE WITH MAINE REVISED STATUTES ANNOTATED,
TITLE 3, SECTION 163-A, SUBSECTION 4.

Penmor Lithographers
Lewiston, Maine
2008

C. Ensure data entry and reporting ~~through June 30, 2008~~; and

See title page for effective date.

CHAPTER 573

H.P. 1518 - L.D. 2138

An Act To Amend the Requirements for Approval of the Use of Physical Restraints

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

Sec. 1. 34-B MRSA §5605, sub-§14, as amended by PL 2003, c. 564, §3, is repealed.

Sec. 2. 34-B MRSA §5605, sub-§14-A is enacted to read:

14-A. Physical restraints. A person with mental retardation or autism is entitled to be free from a physical restraint unless:

A. The physical restraint is a short-term step to protect the person from imminent injury to that person or others; or

B. The physical restraint has been approved as a behavioral treatment program in accordance with this section.

A physical restraint may not be used as punishment, for the convenience of the staff or as a substitute for habilitative services. A physical restraint may impose only the least possible restriction consistent with its purpose and must be removed as soon as the threat of imminent injury ends. A physical restraint may not cause physical injury to the person receiving services and must be designed to allow the greatest possible comfort and safety. The use of totally enclosed cribs and barred enclosures is prohibited in all circumstances.

Daily records of the use of physical restraints identified in paragraph A must be kept, which may be accomplished by meeting reportable event requirements.

Daily records of the use of physical restraints identified in paragraph B must be kept, and a summary of the daily records pertaining to the person must be made available for review by the person's planning team, as defined in section 5461, subsection 8-C, on a schedule determined by the team. The review by the personal planning team may occur no less frequently than quarterly. The summary of the daily records must state the type of physical restraint used, the duration of the use and the reasons for the use. A monthly summary of all daily records pertaining to all persons must be relayed to the Office of Advocacy.

Sec. 3. 34-B MRSA §5605, sub-§14-B is enacted to read:

14-B. Mechanical supports. Mechanical supports used in normative situations to achieve proper body position and balance are not considered physical restraints, but mechanical supports must be prescriptively designed and applied under the supervision of a qualified professional with concern for principles of good body alignment and circulation and allowance for change of position.

Sec. 4. 34-B MRSA §5605, sub-§14-C is enacted to read:

14-C. Safety devices. A safety device whose effect is to reduce or inhibit a person's movement in any way but whose purpose is to maintain or ensure the safety of the person is not considered behavioral treatment or a physical restraint. Safety devices include, but are not limited to, implements, garments, gates, barriers, locks or locking apparatus, alarms, helmets, masks, gloves, straps, belts or protective gloves whose purpose is to maintain the safety of the person. The department may adopt rules concerning the use and approval of safety devices. Rules adopted pursuant to this subsection are routine technical rules as defined in Title 5, chapter 375, subchapter 2-A.

See title page for effective date.

CHAPTER 574

S.P. 752 - L.D. 1958

An Act To Make Marine Resources Management More Responsive

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

Sec. 1. 12 MRSA §6171, sub-§5, as amended by PL 2007, c. 157, §1, is repealed and the following enacted in its place:

5. Rules to limit taking of marine organisms. The commissioner may adopt rules that limit the taking of a marine organism for the purpose of protecting another marine organism.

A. Rules adopted pursuant to this subsection are major substantive rules pursuant to Title 5, chapter 375, subchapter 2-A.

B. If the commissioner determines that for biological reasons a rule adopted under this section must take effect prior to final adoption under paragraph A, the commissioner may adopt the rule as a routine technical rule pursuant to Title 5, chapter 375, subchapter 2-A. A rule adopted under this paragraph is effective until 90 days after the adjournment of the next regular session of the

Legislature. Rules adopted pursuant to this paragraph must also be submitted to the Legislature under paragraph A. The commissioner may not adopt rules under Title 5, section 8054 pursuant to this paragraph.

This paragraph is repealed July 31, 2012.

See title page for effective date.

CHAPTER 575
S.P. 796 - L.D. 2002

**An Act To Protect Electricity
Consumers of Maine**

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

Sec. 1. 35-A MRSA §3132, sub-§2, as amended by PL 2007, c. 148, §3, is further amended to read:

2. Construction of transmission line. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 3-A, whenever any person proposes to erect within this State ~~a transmission line capable of operating at 100 kilovolts, or more, or a transmission line capable of operating at 69 kilovolts or more that is proposed to be financed, permitted, constructed, owned in whole or in part or operated by the Northern Maine Transmission Corporation pursuant to Title 10, chapter 1003 or financed by the Finance Authority of Maine pursuant to Title 10, section 1053, subsection 6, paragraph F,~~ that person shall file a petition for the approval of the proposed line. The petition for approval of the proposed transmission line must contain such information as the commission by rule prescribes. The petition for approval must be set down for public hearing. The commission shall issue its order within 6 months after the petition is filed unless this period is extended either by agreement of all the parties or by the commission upon its determination that the party seeking the extension would, because of circumstances beyond that party's control, be unreasonably disadvantaged unless the extension were granted, provided that the party to that time had prosecuted its case in good faith and with due diligence.

At the time of filing of a petition for approval of a proposed line under this section, the person filing the petition shall send a copy of the petition by certified mail to the municipal officers of the municipality or municipalities in which the line is to be located.

Sec. 2. 35-A MRSA §3210-C, sub-§3, as amended by PL 2007, c. 293, §2, is further amended to read:

3. Commission authority. The commission may direct ~~large~~ investor-owned transmission and distribution utilities to enter into long-term contracts for:

- A. Capacity resources; and
- B. Any available energy associated with capacity resources contracted under paragraph A:

- (1) To the extent necessary to fulfill the policy of subsection 2, paragraph A; or

- (2) If the commission determines appropriate for purposes of supplying or lowering the cost of standard-offer service. Available energy contracted pursuant to this subparagraph may be sold into the wholesale electricity market in conjunction with solicitations for standard-offer supply bids.

The commission may direct ~~large~~ investor-owned transmission and distribution utilities to enter into contracts under this subsection only as agents for their customers and only in accordance with this section. To the greatest extent possible, the commission shall develop procedures having the same legal and financial effect as the procedures used for standard-offer service pursuant to section 3212 for ~~large~~ investor-owned transmission and distribution utilities.

The commission may enter into contracts for interruptible, demand response or energy efficiency capacity resources. These contracts are not subject to the rules of the State Purchasing Agent.

Capacity resources contracted under this subsection may not exceed the amount necessary to ensure the reliability of the electric grid of this State or to lower customer costs as determined by the commission pursuant to rules adopted under subsection 10.

Unless the commission determines the public interest requires otherwise, a capacity resource may not be contracted under this subsection unless the commission determines that the capacity resource is recognized as a capacity resource for purposes of any regional or federal capacity requirements.

Sec. 3. 35-A MRSA §3210-C, sub-§7, as amended by PL 2007, c. 293, §4, is further amended to read:

7. Disposition of resources. A ~~large~~ investor-owned transmission and distribution utility shall sell capacity resources and energy purchased pursuant to subsection 3 or take other action relative to such capacity resources and energy as directed by the commission.

Sec. 4. 35-A MRSA §3210-C, sub-§8, as enacted by PL 2005, c. 677, Pt. C, §1, is amended to read:

8. Cost recovery. The commission shall ensure that a ~~large~~ investor-owned transmission and distribu-